
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  
WESTERN DISTRICT OF WASEIINGTON  

AT SEATTLE  

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE Case No. COS+[S7JLZ 
COMMISSION, 

I 
COMPLAINT FOR VIOLATIONS 

Plaintiff, OF TJB FEDERAL SECURITIES 
LAWSvs-

STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT &  
OPPORTUNITY CORPORATION;  
ROBERT J. PRATT, and JEFFREY A.  
BROMMER,  

:Jj  17 
Defendants.0 3l8 

19 

20 

21 Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission ("Commission") alleges as 

22 follows:II 
23 11 AND VENUEJURISDIC~ON 

I. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Sections 20(b), 
24 11 
25 11 20(d)(l), 20(g), and 22(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 (''Securities Act"), 15 

26 IIU.S.C. $5  77t(b), 77t(d)(l), 77t(g) & 77v(a), and Sections 21(d)(l), 21(d)(2), 

27 11 21(d)(3)(A), 21 (d)(6)(A), 21(e), and 27 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 

28 ("Exchange Act"), 15 U.S.C. $ 5  78u(d)(l), 78u(d)(2), 78u(d)(3)(A), 78u(d)(6)(A), 
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8u(e) & 78aa. Defendants have, directly or indirectly, made use of the means or 

nstrumentalities of interstate commerce, of the mails, or of the facilities of a 

~ational securities exchange, in connection with the transactions, acts, practices, 

nd courses of business alleged in this complaint. Venue is proper in this district 

ursuant to Section 22(a) of the Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. $ 77v(a), and Section 27 

)fthe Exchange Act, 15 [J.S.C. 5 78aa, because certain of the transactions, acts, 

~ractices, and courses of conduct constituting violations of the federal securities 

aws occurred within, the defendants transact business in, and defendant Robert J. 

'ran resides in this district. 

suh,lMARy 

2. This case involves a fraudulent "pump and dump" scheme to 

nanipulate the market for the stock of Strategic Management & Opportunity 

2orporation ("SMPP") by its chairman and CEO, Robert J. Pratt, and by Jeffrey A. 

3rornmer (collectively, the "Defendants"). SMPP and Pratt hired Brornmer, who 

~reviouslywas enjoined from violating antifraud provisions of the federal 

iecurities laws, to help draft and distribute press releases. 

3. From February to August 2004, SMPP and Pratt issued a series of 

aaterially false and misleading press releases about the company's business and its 

capital raising efforts. By issuing false and misleading press releases and making 

false and misleading statements, Defendants "pumped up" the price and volume of 

SMPP stock. As a result of the Defendants' ikaudulent activities, the price of SMPP 

stock increased from $0.10 per share on February 2 to a high of $4.50 on June 10. 

While the market for SMPP stock was artificially inflated, Pratt and Brommer 

"dumped" their own SMPP shares by selling them into the market for a total profit 

of $628,947 and $24,916, respectively. Additionally, Pratt and SMPP improperly 

distributed stock, which increased significantly the total number of SMPP's 

outstanding shares and thereby allowed Pratt, an affiliate of SMPP, to sell much 

more stock than he otherwise would have been permitted to sell under the federal 
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Defendants have violated, and unless enjoined will continue to violate, the 

antifraud provisions of the Exchange Act, Section 1O(b) of the Exchange Act, 15 

U.S.C. 5 78j(b), and Rule lob-5 thereunder, 17 C.F.R. 5 240.10b-5. 

5. By engaging in the conduct described in this Complaint, Pratt and 

I(SMPP violated, and unless enjoined will continue to violate, the securities 

registration provisions of the Securities Act, Sections 5(a) and 5(c) of the 

Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. $ 5  77e(a) & 77e(c). 

6. By this Complaint, the Commission seeks permanent injunctions 

against each of the Defendants. The Commission also seeks disgorgernent with 

prejudgment interest, civil penalties, and penny stock bars against Pratt and 

Brommer, and an officer and director bar against Pl-att. 

THE DEFENDANTS 

7. Strategic Management & Opportunity Corporation was incorporated 

in Washington in December 1999under the name SMO Multimedia Corp. and has 

its principal place of business in Everson, Washington. In August 2004, the 

company changed its name to Strategic Management & Opportunity Corporation. 
I  SMPP has never registered an offering of securities under the Securities Act or a 

I  class of securities under the Exchange Act. SMPP was purportedly in the business 

of developing "way-finding" kiosk systems, which were to provide directions and 

related information to patrons in airports and shopping malls. 

8. Robert J. Pratt resides in Lynden, Washington. Pratt founded SMPP's 

predecessor, SMO Multimedia, in 1999. He is SMPP's chairman and CEO. 

9. Jeffrey A. Brommer resides in Jarnestown, North Carolina. He is the 

president and CEO of Investments 10 1, Ltd. ("Investments 10I"), a dehnct Illinois 

I corporation that provided investor relations services. In September 1999, 

1 II
I 

Brommer consented to entry of an injunction, payment of disgorgement, 
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I 

' 

I 

prejudgment interest, a civll penalty, and an l8-month bar from associating with 

any investment adviser in settlement of the Commission's complaint that he 

fraudulently touted and then sold the shares of another over-the-counter issuer 

without properly disclosing that he received shares and money from the issuer as 

compensation. See SEC v. Anita Carlisle dba Carlisle Conzrnzinications, et al., 

Civil Action No. W98CA352 (W.D. Tex. 1998); In re Jeflev Brornmer, 1999 SEC 

LEXIS 2188 (Sept. 30, 1999). 

Tm PURIP:SMPP ISSUED AND MISLEADINGFALSE PRESSRELEASES 

10. From February to August 2004, SMPP issued nine materially false 

and misleading press releases. These press releases falsely announced that SMPP 

raised capital by selling 12.5 million restricted shares of its stock to each of four 

entities: Learn Waterhouse, Incorporated; USA Group; Acosta Enterprises, Inc.; 

and Hudson Management, Ltd. at share prices of $0.10, $0.75, $1.00, and $1 .50, 

respectively. SMPP's press releases also misrepresented the production and 

distribution status of its way-finding krosks. To further bolster its prospects, 

SMPP also issued a press release announcing its retention of Brommer, portraying 

him as a knowledgeable follower of SMPP. SMPP7s stock price rose precipitously 

with each announcement. In fact, SMPP did not have a market-ready product and 

had received a mere $1.25 million of the $41.8 million capital touted in the press 

releases. 

A. INFEBRUARY C H , S m P  TO ISSUEPRESSAND ~ PRATT CAUSED 

RELEASEST&AT FALSELY TBE AMOUNTOF FUNDINGREPRESENTED THAT 

SMPPRECENEDFROMLWI 

11. Between February 23 and March 23,2004, SMPP issued four press 

releases. The first two press releases announced financing and joint venture 

agreements with Florida-based Learn Waterhouse Incorporated ("LWI"), a Texas 

corporation. The remaining two press releases announced SMPP7s participation in 

other business development activities designed to promote its kiosk technology. 
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'ratt drafted and approved all four press releases. 

12. During the four-week period between the announcements, SMPP's 

tock price rose 73%, from $0.52 on Februaiy 23 to $0.90 on March 23. 

13. 'The first press release, issued on February 23, announced that SMPP 

ad closed its "first round of financing" with LWI and falsely stated that SMPP 

mrnediately would begin to manufacture and market its proprietary kiosk systems 

3 airports and shopping centers. In fact, SMPP had only one worlung prototype 

nd the company was several months, if not years, away from bringing its luosk 

ystems to market. Further, SMPP had not conducted any substantial activities to 

jromote its technology. Pratt drafted and approved the February 23 press release- 

14. The second press release, issued on March 8, announced that SMPP 

lad signed a joint venture agreement with LWI and claimed that LWI "has 

)ossession of several new technologies that have immediate market value . . . ." 

Zontrary to these statements, LWI did not possess any "new technologies" of any 

ralue whatsoever. Rather, LWI was nothing more than an elaborate Ponzi-like 

.cheme whose activities were restrained shortly thereafter by a U.S. District Court 

fudge in October 2004. SEC v. Learn Waterhouse, Inc., et al., Civil Action No. 

34-CV-2037 W (LSP) (S.D. Cal. Oct. 13,2004). Pratt drafied and approved the 

March 8 press release. 

15. The press release's statements about LWIYs financing also were false 

and misleading. LW17s subscription agreement required SMPP to issue stock to 

LWI in four stages (for a total of 12.5 million shares) only when SMPP received 

four corresponding payments from LWI (for a total of $1.25 million). SMPP and 

Pratt did not disclose in either the February 23 or March 8 press release that SMPP 

issued all 12.5 million shares to LWI before LWI fulfilled all its reciprocal 

contractual obligations to make corresponding payments. Specifically, as soon as 

LWI made just one installment payment, Pratt directed SMPP7s transfer agent to 

issue three installments of shares to LTNI with an effective date of February 20 -a 
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ate three days before the first press release about the LWI funding agreement. By 

le end of March, LWI had paid SMPP only $1 15,000 of the $1.25 million 

ubscription price, but SMPP had issued all 12.5 mllion shares to LWI. 

I. INA r m ,  PRATTAND BROMMER SMPP TO ISSUEA PRESSCAUSED 

RELEASEANNOUNCINGTEEHIRINGOF BROMMER MADEANDBROMMER 

FALSEREPRESENTATIONSTO INVESTORS 

16. On April 1, SMPP announced in a press release that SMPP had 

etained Investments 101 to provide investor relations services. As part of the 

ervices Brommer provided to SMPP, he helped Pratt with drafting and editing the 

Iress releases. Brommer also posted all of the SMPP press releases described in 

his Complaint on the Investments 101 website, and distributed the releases to 

rarious wire services and an email distribution list of investors provided by SMPP. 

Ie also responded orally to investor inquires. 

17. During the week of the announcement about the hiring of Brommer, 

;MPPYsstock price rose 9%, from $0.90 on March 31 to $0.98 on April 2. 

18. The April I press release represented that Brommer had his own 

ndependent basis for believing that SMPP had robust and legitimate fbnding 

igreements. Specifically, the April 1press release quotes Pratt as stating that 

Brornmer had been following SMPP for at least three years. Brommer also 

represented that he could vouch for Pratt's business ethics. 

19. These representations were false. Brommer did not conduct 

independent research to verify the statements in the press releases or the 

information provided orally by Pratt. Rather, Brommer believed that Pratt 

"embellished" the SMPP press releases to "feed the investor base." Brommer 

knew, or was reckless in not knowing, that these facts were material, and he did 

not disclose them to investors. 

20. Following the April 1announcement of his retention by SMPP, 

Brommer responded to investor inquiries by making statements and assurances 
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about SMPP, Pratt, and his own ability to provide investors with an objective  

analysis of SMPP.  

2 1. These representations also were false. Bromrner was not objective. 

((Undisclosed to investors, SMPP agreed to pay Brommer 50,000 shares for six 

) Imonths of investor relations services. These shares were the most significant 

portion of his compensation. At the time Brommer entered into the agreement 

with SMPP, 50,000 shares of SMPP were worth approximately $46,500, or more 

than two and one-half times the amount of his fees ($16,800 paid over six months). I11I At the height of the pump, those 50,000 shares were worth approximately 

11  $225,000, or more than thirteen times the total amount of Brommer7s fees. 

I/Bromrner knew, or was reckless in not knowing, that the nature and amount of his 

compensation was material to hts objectivity, and he did not disclose it to 

investors. 

22.  Additionally, Brommer failed to disclose that he previously had been 1 /
((enjoined in a Commission enforcement action alleging that he fraudulently touted 

11and scalped securities of another over-the-counter issuer, and that he was barred 

11 for eighteen months from associating with an investment adviser. Brommer knew, 

or was reckless in not knowing, that his prior injunction, his bar order, his potential 

to profit from a positive market from the sale of SMPP stock, and his lack of an 

independent basis for vouching for SMPP and Pratt were material to investors. 

C .   INMAY, FRATTCAUSEDSMPPTo ISSUEA PRESSRELEASEFALSELY 

ANNOUNCINGTHATUSA GROUP FUNDSWOULDPROVIDE TO SMPP 

23. On May 14, SMPP announced that SMPP had signed a $9.3 million 

. financing agreement with USA Group, an entity based in Las Vegas, Nevada. In 

I the press release, SMPP quoted the president of USA Group as stating that his 

i company had assets under management and joint ventures valued at over $50 
' billion. Pratt drafted and approved the May 14press release. 
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24. Over the next two weeks, SMPP's stock price rose 3094, from $1.45 

In May 14 to $1.88 on June 1. 

25. The May 14 release regarding SMPP's agreement with USA Group 

vas materially false and misleading. Although USA Group was obligated to pay 

;MPP $9.37 million when the subscription agreement was signed on May 4, it had 

lot done so at the time of SMPP's May 14 announcement. Nonetheless, on May 

1, three days before the press release was issued, Pratt instructed the transfer 

gent to issue 12.5 million shares to USA Group, pursuant to the subscription 

~greement.SMPP and Pratt did not disclose in the May 14 press release that 

MPP issued all 12.5 million shares provided for in the subscription agreement 

wen though USA Group failed to hlfill its reciprocal contractual obligation to pay 

;MTP $9.37 million for those shares. In fact, USA Group never paid SMPP any 

h d s  at all. 

26. Further, contrary to the statements in the release, USA Group did not 

lave any significant assets. Even though SMPP touted a $9.3 million financing 

tgreement (and actually was overdue to receive those hnds by May 14), Pratt 

lever examined USA Group's books and records or financial statements, never 

visited the company's offices, and never independently confirmed the assets under 

its management. In fact, USA Group operated out of an apartment building, 

information that was readily available on the internet. 

D.  LNJUNE,FRATTCAUSEDSMPPTO ISSUEA PRESS RELEASE FALSELY 

REPRESENTINGTELATACOSTA WOULD PROVIDE ENTERPRISES CASH 

J?INANC~NG TO SlMPP 

27. On June 9, SMPP announced a $12.5 million funding agreement with 

Acosta Enterprises, Inc., a Texas corporation ("Acosta Enterprises") owned by 

Arnulfo Acosta, an attorney and a defendant named in the Commission's action 

against LWI. In the press release, SMPP and Pratt claimed that Acosta Enterprises 

owned mortgage companies, a phosphate mine, a fluoride mine, a gold mine, a 
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ltaniurn mine, and "various joint ventures." The press release continued to make 

he hlse and misleading statement that SMPP was "preparing to deploy" its kiosk 

systems. Pratt drafted and approved the June 9 press release. 

28, The next day, SMPP's stock rose $1.05, or 30%, reachng an all-time 

~ i g hclosing price of $4.50 per share. 

29. Like the prior press releases, the June 9 press release also omitted 

material facts. When SMPP and Pratt touted the agreement on June 9, Acosta 

Enterprises already was in breach of it. Although the agreement required Acosta 

Enterprises to pay SMPP $12.5 million when it was signed on May 24, it failed to 

do so. In fact, Acosta Enterprises never paid SMPP any h d s  at all. 

30. Moreover, although the press release stated SMPP would receive 

$12.5 million from Acosta Enterprises, SMPP and Pratt knew that Acosta 

Enterprises never intended to provide cash financing. Specifically, Acosta 

Enterprises told Pratt in May that it would hnd  SMPP using a "pre-funded, cash- 

backed instrument GUARANTEED by a top-25 USA, Canada or West Europe 

Bank to secure 100% of your investment funds." In other words, Acosta 

Enterprises was going to provide SMPP only with an interest in another venture. 

3 1. Further, SMPP and Pratt conducted no due diligence to verify that 

Acosta Enterprises owned the interests it claimed or that it had the wherewithal to 

fund SMPP. Pratt never reviewed the company's books and records or asked to 

see its fmancial statements. 

32. And, contrary to Pratt's assertion that SMPP now had the necessary 

financial backing to deploy its kiosks, SMPP's financial situation was so 

precarious that it did not have sufficient funds to meet its payroll and other fixed 

expenses. 

* * * * *   
* * * * *   
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3. IN AUGUST,PRA'TTCAUSEDSMPP 'ro ISSUEA PRESSRELEASEFALSELY 

-REPRESENTINGTE~ATHUDSON WOULDPROVIDE-- MANAGEMENT I~UNDIIYG 

To SlLaPP 

33. On August 5, SMPP announced that it had signed an $18.75 million 

unding agreement with Hudson Management, Ltd. a firm located in British 

=olurnbia, Canada ("Hudson Management") in exchange for 12.5 million restricted 

;hares priced at $1.50 per share. The release described Hudson Management as a 

'diversified asset management and holding company, operating world wide." Pratt 

jraRed and approved the A u p t  5 press release. 

34. SMPP's stock price rose 13% on August 5, closing up $0.25 to $2.20 

Jer share. 

35. The press release was materially false and misleading. By the time 

he press release was issued on August 5 ,  I-Iudson Management already was 

-equired by its subscription agreement to pay SMPP $18.75 million, but had failed 

.o do so. Three days prior to the press release, when Hudson Management failed to 

nake payment under the subscription agreement, it executed a note in 

jvhich it pmmised to pay SMPP in six quarterly installments beginning in 

September 2004. The promissory note, however, was secured by a bogus 

instrument: a $50 million "corporate letter of credit," maturing on August 26, 

2006, in a $2.2 billion Treasury Bond "strip" purportedly owned by an individual 

named Ian Fleming. Rather than disclosing that Hudson Management executed a 

promissory note, and had done so because it did not comply with its original 

agreement, SMPP and Pratt touted the very agreement that had been breached three 

days before. In fact, Hudson Management never paid SMPP any funds at all. 

36. Further, SMPP and Pratt conducted no due diligence to verify that 

Hudson Management owned the assets it claimed or that it had the wherewithal to 

hnd  SMPP. Pratt never reviewed the company's books and records or asked to 

see its financial statements. 
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. PUTT NEGOTUTEL)'THEFUNDINGAGREEMENTSAND DILUTED TEE 

PRESSRELEASES 

37. Pratt negotiated the hnding agreements with each of the four entities 

Lescribed above and had sole responsibility for conducting due diligence on them 

~ndtheir ability to meet their payment obligations. 

38. Pratt knew, or was reckless in not knowing, that SMPP had received 

~nlya fraction of the funding announced in the press releases about SMPP's 

ransactions with LWI, USA Group, Acosta Enterprises, and Hudson Management. 

'ratt knew, or was reckless in not knowing, that SMPP nonetheless had issued 

nillions of shares to these four entities, in violation of the terms of the subscription 

igreernents. 

39. Pratt knew, or was reckless in not knowing, that SMPP and Pratt 

:onducted no due hligence to verifl that these entities owned the interests they 

:laimed or that they had the wherewithal to fund SMPP. Pratt knew, or was 

.eckless in not knowing, that neither henor anygne from SMPP ever reviewed the 

:ompaniesY books and records or asked to see their financial statements. 

40. Further, Pratt knew, or was reckless in not knowing, that SMPP had 

only one working prototype of the kiosk and was several months, if not years, 

away from entering the marketplace. 

41. These facts were material, and Pratt and SMPP failed to disclose them 

in the press releases, all of which Pratt drafted and approved. 

G. FRATT INCREASED SEIARESDURINGIMPROPERLY SIMPP's OUTSTANDING 

THE AND DIRECTEDTHATSHARESBE ISSUEDTO HJM 

42. Even though SMPP received few or none of the investment funds due 

from the fimding agreements, Pratt directed the company's stock transfer agent to 

issue millions of restricted shares to the putative purchasers immediately. 

43. Pratt was an "affiliate" of SMPP pursuant to 17 C.F.R. @ 

230.144(a)(l). Therefore, the sales-volume limitations of Securities Act Rule 144, 
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17 C.F.R. 5 230.144, limited the amount of shares of SMPP that Pratt could sell in 

sny 90-day period to either: (1) up to I [:/o of the SMPP's total number of 

~utstmding shares; or (2) the average weekly reported trading volume in the 

SMPP's securities during the four weeks before the sale by the affiliate. Because 

Pratt's actions substantially increased the total number of outstanding shares of 

SMPP stock, Pratt was able to sell much more stock than he otherwise would be 

permitted to sell under the sales-volume limitations of Securities Act Rule 144, 17 

C.F.R. 5 230.144(e)(1). 

44. On February 23, when SMPP made its false and misleading 

announcement regarding the LWI deal, SMPP had approximately 7.0 million 

shares outstanding. On or about March 1 and March 31,2004, Pratt instructed 

Intenvest Transfer Company, Inc. of Salt Lake City, Utah, the transfer agent, to 

issue a total of 12.5 million shares to L W ,  even though SMPP had received only 

$1 15,000 of the $1.25 million subscription price. 

45. Similarly, on May 1 1, three days before the false and misleading press 

release concerning the USA Group hnding agreement, Pratt instructed SMPP's 

transfer agent to issue all 12.5 million shares to USA Group and date them as of 

May 5,  even though USA Group had not met its obligation to pay for those shares. 

46. Likewise, on June 7, two days before the false and misleading press 

release announcing the fimding agreement with Acosta Enterprises, Pratt instructed 

the transfer agent to issue all 12.5 million shares to Acosta Enterprises 

immediately, even though Acosta Enterprises had not met its obligation to pay for 

those shares. 

47, And, on Qctober 11, Pritt instructed the transfer agent to issue to 

I Hudson Management 12.5 million shares, even though Hudson Management had 

1 not met its obligation to pay for those shares. 

48. As a result of Pratt's instructions to 'the transfer agent, by October 11, 

1 the total number of SMPP's outstanding shares had risen to 64.8 million shares. 
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49. During the same time period, Pratt also increased his own stock 

loldings in SMPP. On March 31, Pratt instructed the transfer agent to issue three 

nillion shares to him. Pratt represented to the transfer agent that the shares were 

luthorized under a December 3 1,2000 SMO Multimedia corporate resolution. 

50. The SMO Multimedia corporate resolution, which Pratt alone had 

;igned, renewed automatically every year and allowed Pratt to receive stock 

~ptions (with a strike price of $0.10 per share) as compensation in lieu of a salary. 

3MFP's books and records do not reflect that Pratt exercised the options and paid 

'or the shares. 

51. Pratt instructed the transfer agent to issue the shares in three, one- 

nillion share certificates and back-date them to reflect issue dates of January 1, 

2001, January 1,2002,and January 1,2003, respectively. 

52. As a result of Pratt's improper instruction that the transfer agent issue 

lack-dated shares to him, Pratt owned more shares, and thus was able to sell more 

shares, during the period when SMPP's stock price was at its height. 

THE DUMP:~ L L C I TSTOCK AT ARTIFICIALLY-~ATEDSALES ~ C E S  

53. Pratt sold over 320,000 shares into the artificially-inflated market and 

earned profits of nearly $629,000. 

54. From March 26 through April 6 (afier SMPP announced its purported 

financing agreement and joint venture with LWI), Pratt sold 96,467 shares for a 

gain of $86,561. 

55. From May 14 through June 1 (following SMPP's announcement of 

the purported funding agreement with USA Group), Pratt sold another 39,941 

shares for a gain of $52,547. 

56. From July 14 through August 5 (after SMPP announced the purported 

funding agreements with Acosta Enterprises and Hudson Management), Pratt sold 

183,750 shares for a gain of $489,839. 
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57. As a result of Pratt's improper instructions to SMPP's transfer agent 

o issue the shares to the four entities, Pratt was able to sell substantially more 

;hares of SMPP than he otherwise could in any 90-day period (while ostensibly 

:omplying with the sales-volume limitations of Securities Act Rule 144, 17 C.F.R. 

5 230.144(e)(l)). 

58. During the time Pratt "dumped" his SMPP shares, the only current 

mblic information about the company was in the false and misleading press 

releases that Pratt had drafted and approved. 

59. Moreover, the shares Pratt sold from July 14 through August 5 had 

not been held for one year as required by Securities Act Rule 144. On July 16, 

2004, when Pratt filed his Form 144 in connection with these trades, he falsely 

represented that SMPP had issued the shares to him in 2002. In fact, SMPP issued 

those shares to Pratt on March 3 1, 2004, purportedly as compensation for work 

done in 2001. 

60. Even though Pratt directed the transfer agent to back-date the 

certificate for those shares to January 1,200 1, the holding period under Securities 

Act Rule 144 did not commence until nearly three years later when the transfer 

agent issued the shares. Thus, Pratt had held the shares that he sold in July and 

August for only about four months, not for at least one year as required by Rule 

144 and as he misrepresented in his filing to the Commission. 

61. On June 14, Brommer sold 5,000 shares of SMPP for a gain of 

$24,916. 
* * * * *  
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Fmsr CLAIMFOR &LIEF 

UNREGISTEREDO R~ ANDSUE OF SECURITIES 

Violations of Sections 5(a) and 5(c) of the Securities Act 

(Against SMPP and Pratt) 

62. The Commission realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 

hrough 61, above. 

63. SME'P and Pratt, by engaging in the conduct described above, directly 

br indirectly, made use of means or instruments of transportation or 

.ommication in interstate commerce or of the mails, to offer to sell or to sell 

ecurities, or to carry or cause such securities to be carried through the mails or in 

nterstate commerce for the purpose of sale or for delively after sale. 

64. No registration statement has been filed with the Commission or has 

Ieen in effect with respect to the offering alleged herein. 

65. By engaging in the conduct described above, SMPP and Pratt 

riolated, and unless restrained and enjoined will continue to violate, Sections 5(a) 

md 5(c) of the Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. $9 77e(a) and 77e(c). 

SECONDCLAIMFOR LIEF  

mUDINCONNECTION WITH TEE PURC~ASEOR SALEOF SECURITIES 

Violations of Section lo@)of the Exchange Act and Rule lob-5 Thereunder 

(Against SMPP, Pratt and Brommer) 

66. The Commission realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 

through 65, above. 

67. SMPP, Pratt, and Brommer, by engaging in the conduct described 

above, directly or indirectly, in connection with the purchase or sale of a security, 

by the use of means or instrumentalities of interstate commerce, of the mails, or of 

the facilities of a national securities exchange, with scienter: 

a. employed devices, schemes, or artifices to defraud; 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE CO@KSSION 
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b. made untrue statements of a material fact or omitted to state a 

material fact necessary in order to make the statements made, 

in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, 

not misleading; or 

c. engaged in acts, practices, or courses of business which 

operated or would operate as a fraud or deceit upon other 

persons. 

68. By engaging in the conduct described above, SMPP, Pratt, and 

3romrner violated, and unless restrained and enjoined will continue to violate, 

Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. 8 78j(b), and Rule lob-5 thereunder, 

17 C.F.R. 240.10b-5. 

PRAV~ERFOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, the Commission respectfully requests that the Court: 

I. 

Issue findings of fact and conclusions of law that the Defendants committed 

the alleged violations. 

n. 
Issue judgments, in a form consistent with Fed. R. Civ. P. 65(d), 

permanently enjoining SMPP and Pratt and their officers, agents, servants, 

employees, and attorneys, and those persons in active concert or participation with 

any of them, who receive actual notice of the judgment by personal service or 

otherwise, and each of them, from violating Sections 5(a), 15 U.S.C. 8 77e(a) and 

5(c), 15 U.S.C. 5 77e(c), of the Securities Act, and Section 10(b), 15 U.S.C. 5 
78j(b), of the Exchange Act, and Rule lob-5 thereunder, 17 C.F.R. 8 240.10b-5. 

m. 
Issue a judgment, in a form consistent with Fed. R. Civ. P. 65(d), 

permanently enjoining Brommer and his agents, servants, employees, and 
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zttorneys, and those persons in active concert or participation with any of them, 

who receive actual notice of the judgment by personal service or otherwise, and 

:ach of them, from violating Section 10(b), 15 U.S.C. tj 78j(b), of the Exchange 

Act, and Rule lob-5 thereunder, 17 C.F.R. 5 240.10b-5. 

ZV. 

Order Pratt and Brommer to disgorge all ill-gotten gains from the illegal 

sonduct alleged herein, together with prejudgment interest thereon. 

v. 
Order Pratt to pay a civil penalty pursuant to Section 20(d) of the Securities 

Act, 15 U.S.C. fj77t(d), and Pratt and Brommer to pay civil penalties pursuant to 

Section 21(d)(3) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. 6 78u(d)(3). 

VI. 
Issue judgments, in a form consistent with Fed. R. Civ. P. 65(d), 

permanently barring Pratt and Bromrner from participating in any offering of 

penny stock pursuant to Section 21(d)(6) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. 5 
78u(d)(6), and Pratt from participating in any offering of penny stock pursuant to 

Section 20(g) of the Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. $77t(g). 
VII. 

Enter an order, pursuant to Section 21(d)(2) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. 

2 78u(d)(2), prohibiting Pratt from acting as an officer or director of any issuer that 

has a class of securities registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act, 15 

U.S.C. j 781, or that is required to file reports pursuant to Section 15(d) of the 

Exchange Act, 15U.S.C. 5 78o(d). 

VIII.  

Retain jurisdiction of this action in accordance with the principles of equity 

and the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure in order to implement and carry out the 

terms of all orders and decrees that may be entered, or to entertain any suitable 

application or motion for additional relief within the jurisdiction of this Court. 
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further 

E. 

relief as this Court may determine to be just 

CAROL LALLY 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
Securities and Exchange Commission 
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